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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Good morning,

          3  everyone. This is the meeting of the Subcommittee on

          4  Landmarks, Public Siting And Maritime Uses. I'm

          5  Council Member John Sabini, I chair this panel. The

          6  full Land Use Committee is chaired by Chairwoman

          7  Eisland of the Bronx. We are joined today by

          8  Committee members Priscilla Wooten of Brooklyn,

          9  Michael J. Abel of Queens, and sitting in as a guest

         10  today, an always welcome guest, is Council Member

         11  James Oddo of Staten Island.

         12                 We're going to hear four items today.

         13  Land Use 971, Brooklyn Community Board 8, a

         14  Landmarks Preservation Commission designation of the

         15  Studabaker Building in Council Member Robinson's

         16  district. We are joined by Council Member Adolpho

         17  Carrion, Jr., of the Bronx.

         18                 Land Use 986, in Manhattan Community

         19  Board 5, a Landmarks Preservation Commission

         20  designation of the United States Rubber Company in

         21  Council Member Moskowitz' district.

         22                 Land Use 987, Manhattan Community

         23  Board 5, an LPC designation of the AT Demerest and

         24  Co., and Peerless Motor Car Company, in Council

         25  Member Moskowitz' district, today is automotive day
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          2  in the Committee.

          3                 And then, last but not least, Land

          4  Use 1047, in Staten Island Community Board No. 2,

          5  Council Member Oddo's District, which is an

          6  application by the Department of Sanitation for a

          7  site selection in, I assume -- I'm sorry, I don't

          8  assume -- Solid Waste Transfer Station, at 310 West

          9  Service Road, I guess that's the West Service Road

         10  of the West Shore Expressway in Staten Island.

         11                 Council Member Wooten, having other

         12  commitments, has asked to cast a coupled vote on the

         13  items, and I will ask Pat Prothro, our Counsel, to

         14  call Council Member Wooten.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         16  Wooten.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair, for giving me an opportunity to attend my

         19  second meeting. I vote aye on all. I'm told that

         20  there are no controversy issues, so whatever Staten

         21  Island wants me to do I'll do.

         22                 I vote aye on all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote

         25  remains open.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Is Landmarks not

          3  here?

          4                 MS. KLEIN: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Oh, Landmarks is

          6  here, I'm sorry. Okay.

          7                 MS. KLEIN: It's my first time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: It's your first

          9  time. I won't even make a comment. Although, with

         10  term limits, maybe I should.

         11                 Council Member Perkins in the house

         12  from Manhattan.

         13                 Okay, we're going to hear Land Use

         14  971, Brooklyn Community Board 8, the LPC

         15  designation, the Studabaker building in Council

         16  Member Robinson's district.

         17                 State your name for the record and

         18  who you represent, please.

         19                 MS. KLEIN: My name is Margo Klein,

         20  Community Liaison for the Landmarks Preservation

         21  Commission, and I'm here today to testify on the

         22  Commission's designation of the Studabaker Building,

         23  located at 1469 Bedford Avenue, as a New York City

         24  Landmark.

         25                 On October 31st, 2000, Landmarks
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          2  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on

          3  proposed designation of the Studabaker Building.

          4                 The Commission received a letter of

          5  support from the owner of the building and has

          6  received several other letters of support.

          7                 On December 19th, 2000, the

          8  Commission voted to designate the Studabaker

          9  Building as a New York City landmark.

         10                 Constructed in 1920, the Studabaker

         11  building is one of the few remaining automobile

         12  showrooms remaining on Bedford Avenue in Crown

         13  Heights, once considered Brooklyn's automobile row.

         14                 Designed by New York-based

         15  architects, E. Post Hooker and Reginold E. Marsh,,

         16  this neogothic style brick building is clad in white

         17  terracotta, manufactured by the Atlantic Terracotta

         18  Works, once the largest fabricator of architectural

         19  terracotta in the world. The building is noted as an

         20  excellent example of the terracotta clad commercial

         21  structure, which served as a company icon.

         22                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         23  the designation of the Studabaker building.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: A couple of

         25  questions.
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          2                 The two ground -- the ground floor

          3  and the second floor are now residential; is that

          4  correct; sort of loft styled space?

          5                 MS. KLEIN: I believe so.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: And the remaining

          7  floors of the structure are used by whom, and for

          8  what?

          9                 MS. KLEIN: I believe they were

         10  remodeled by a development corporation in the area.

         11  I'm not sure of their name.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: My understanding

         13  is they are still used in some sort of commercial

         14  usage, and just for the Committee's notation, there

         15  is a large Studabaker logo on the front of the

         16  building, which makes it rather noticeable to people

         17  who travel down Bedford Avenue.

         18                 Are there any other buildings in

         19  Automobile Row still intact?

         20                 MS. KLEIN: In Brooklyn?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Yes.

         22                 MS. KLEIN: I believe this is the last

         23  one.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         25                 Questions from the Committee?
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          2                 Okay, thank you.

          3                 We will move on to Land Use 986,

          4  Manhattan Community Board 5, the LPC designation of

          5  the United States Rubber Company in Council Member

          6  Moskowitz' district.

          7                 MS. KLEIN: Do I need to state my name

          8  again?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Yes.

         10                 MS. KLEIN: My name is Margo Klein,

         11  Community Liaison for the Landmarks Preservation

         12  Commission.

         13                 I'm here today to testify on the

         14  Commission's designation of the US Rubber Company

         15  Building, located at 1790 Broadway, as a New York

         16  City Landmark.

         17                 On October 31st, 2000, the Landmarks

         18  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the

         19  proposed designation of the US Rubber Company

         20  Building. A representative of the owners spoke in

         21  favor of destination.

         22                 On December 19th, 2000, the

         23  Commission voted to designate the US Rubber Company

         24  Building at the New York City Landmark.

         25                 Completed in 1912, this 20-story
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          2  building was designed by Career and Hastings, who

          3  incorporated their formal training at the Acold

          4  Bozarts (phonetic) with their interest in early

          5  skyscraper design.

          6                 Featuring elaborate iron balconies

          7  and carved marble facades crowned by a broad copper

          8  coronis, the building's ornamentation is subordinate

          9  to the main organizing system of recessed windows

         10  and continuous peers.

         11                 When open, the structure stood at the

         12  tallest building north of Times Square. Located on

         13  the corner of Broadway and 58th Street, the

         14  building's lowest two floors originally provided

         15  retail space for the US Tire Company, a subsidiary

         16  of the US Rubber Company, which used eight floors

         17  for offices.

         18                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         19  the designation of the US Rubber Company Building.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, questions

         21  from the Committee?

         22                 Okay, zipping along to Land Use 987,

         23  Manhattan Community Board 5, LPC designation of the

         24  AT Demerest and Company and Peerless Motor Car

         25  Company, Council Member Moskowitz' district.
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          2                 MS. KLEIN: My name is Margo Klein,

          3  Community Liaison for the Landmarks Preservation

          4  Commission, and I'm here today to testify on the

          5  Commission's designation of the AT Demerest and

          6  Company and Peerless Motor Car Company Building,

          7  located at 224 to 228 West 57th Street, as a New

          8  York City landmark.

          9                 On October 31st, 2000, the Landmarks

         10  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the

         11  proposed designation of the AT Demerest and Company

         12  Building.

         13                 Four people spoke in favor of

         14  designation, including representatives of the owner.

         15                 On December 19th, 2000, the

         16  Commission voted to designate the AT Demerest and

         17  Company and Peerless Motor Company Building as a New

         18  York City landmark.

         19                 Completed in 1909, these two

         20  architecturally harmonious buildings were designed

         21  by Frances H. Kimball, located in the heart of the

         22  Automobile Row section of Broadway.

         23                 These two buildings were used by the

         24  automobile industry for over six decades.

         25                 Established in 1860, the AT Demerest
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          2  and Company was a carriage manufacturer that entered

          3  into automobile production. The Peerless Motor Car

          4  Company of New York was a branch of the Cleveland

          5  Luxury Automobile Manufacturing Company.

          6                 Kimball used neogothic and

          7  neoromanesque stylistic features to differentiate

          8  the building's facade.

          9                 In 1918, Henry J. Hardenberg's firm

         10  connected the two buildings internally to create a

         11  complex for General Motors first headquarters.

         12                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         13  the designation of AT Demerest and Company and

         14  Peerless Motor Car Company Building.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

         16                 Questions from the Committee?

         17                 Okay, thank you.

         18                 MS. KLEIN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: We're now going

         20  to call up the last item on the calendar, Land Use

         21  1047, in Staten Island Community Board No. 2,

         22  application by Department of Sanitation for a site

         23  selection for Solid Waste Transfer Station. Council

         24  Member Oddo's district. And we have pictures, it's

         25  like a whole AV kind of thing going on.
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          2                 You're the audio, Martha.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: I'll be

          4  the audio, it's the music we're lacking, Mr.

          5  Chairman.

          6                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Council

          7  Member Abel, Council Member Carrion, Council Member

          8  Oddo.

          9                 I'm Martha Hirst, Deputy Sanitation

         10  Commissioner for Solid Waste Planning. Thanks for

         11  the opportunity to brief you on our proposed Staten

         12  Island transfer station.

         13                 As you know, in November of last year

         14  the Council overwhelmingly approved the modification

         15  to the City's Solid Waste Management Plan.

         16                 The modified plan became final when

         17  the State DEC approved it on February 27th, 2001.

         18                 The new plan described the various

         19  projects the City will implement to ensure that

         20  waste will be properly managed over the next 20

         21  years. And the plan is borough-based, meaning that

         22  no borough will be required to handle waste

         23  generated in another borough.

         24                 The transfer station we're proposing

         25  for Staten Island is the project approved by the
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          2  Council in the plan as modified to manage Staten

          3  Island's waste.

          4                 Briefly, the key elements of this

          5  project are that the facility will be owned by the

          6  Department of Sanitation and received by truck,

          7  DOS-managed waste originating only from Staten

          8  Island.

          9                 All waste handling will take place in

         10  an enclosed building. DOS will issue an RPF to hire

         11  a private firm to operate the facility under a

         12  long-term contract, which in this case is 20 years.

         13                 The private firm will be responsible

         14  for containerizing, transporting and disposing of

         15  the waste.

         16                 The facility is designed to transport

         17  waste off of Staten Island by rail, while rail

         18  issues are being resolved, including extending the

         19  rail line to Fresh Kills, and constructing the

         20  interconnection in New Jersey to the chemical coast

         21  line. The operator will have the option of either

         22  trucking the sealed containers from the facility, or

         23  transporting sealed containers by barge.

         24                 I want to remind the Subcommittee

         25  that the public has been afforded extensive
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          2  opportunity to review and comment on the project.

          3                 Public hearings were held as part of

          4  the environmental review process for the SWMP

          5  modification which includes this project.

          6                 The Council's Environmental

          7  Protection Committee held several public hearings

          8  leading up to the vote by the full Council,

          9  overwhelmingly supporting the SWMP modification.

         10                 And several public hearings and

         11  meetings were held by Staten Island Community Board

         12  2, followed by a public hearing by the City Planning

         13  Commission in late January, I believe, which I

         14  provided testimony.

         15                 The Department also conducted

         16  briefings and provided written responses to some

         17  questions and concerns to Council Members Oddo and

         18  Fiala, regarding specific concerns about the

         19  project.

         20                 It's my understanding that the only

         21  remaining issues that Council Member Oddo is seeking

         22  to clarify today concerns the potential impact that

         23  trucks exiting the proposed transfer station might

         24  have on the local town of Travis. I will be glad to

         25  respond to any questions which would clarify the
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          2  Department's position on this or other related

          3  matters.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 Council Member Oddo has presented the

          8  Chair with an extensive letter raising many

          9  questions, and I know he wants to get some things on

         10  the record. Before we go to you, do any of the

         11  Committee members want to raise anything?

         12                 Okay, Council Member Oddo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman. Let me just begin by thanking you for

         15  having the hearing, thanking Alanzo Carr and the

         16  Land Use staff for facilitating and expediting the

         17  hearing, thanking also Commissioner Hirst for being

         18  here today.

         19                 I think my friends in the

         20  Administration thought perhaps I lost my mind when

         21  they found out that I called up this particular

         22  item. I did so knowing full well that this transfer

         23  station is needed as part of the Fresh Kills'

         24  closure plan, part of the Giuliani Administration's

         25  plan to have borough-based management of solid
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          2  waste.

          3                 I have and continue to support this

          4  transfer station. Any questions about its size,

          5  exact location, have been addressed ad nauseam by

          6  Commissioner Hirst under questioning by my colleague

          7  Steve Fiala, myself and many of our colleagues in

          8  the Council and other elected officials.

          9                 The only issue I have remaining that

         10  I would like addressed today is the issue of trucks

         11  having tipped at the new facility and now needing to

         12  go back to the various garages on Staten Island.

         13                 What I'm trying to do, and I've

         14  received a great deal of cooperation from DOS, is

         15  extend the idea that no borough should be

         16  overburdened, extend that to individual communities,

         17  looking at it in terms of intra-borough Staten

         18  Island, the Travis community, because of its

         19  proximity to the landfill has had to deal with the

         20  nightmare of Fresh Kills probably more than any

         21  other community, not only in my Council district,

         22  but on Staten Island. I mean, it literally sits in

         23  the shadow of Fresh Kills, so I want to afford that

         24  community as much relief as the rest of Staten

         25  Island is getting, and I just want to have an
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          2  on-the-record conversation with DOS so that we can

          3  publicly state what we have been privately stating

          4  and that's that they are looking at various options

          5  to ensure that those trucks will not rumble down

          6  Victory Boulevard, and that will access the garage,

          7  the DOS garage on Richmond Avenue, in another --

          8  through another means.

          9                 So, I would simply ask Commissioner

         10  Hirst if she can give us an update on some of the

         11  dialogue we were having about using internal

         12  roadways in the landfill to access garage 2?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: If you would, and

         14  also I guess point out to folks, I'm familiar with

         15  the area, or at least the community of Travis, but

         16  where you're going to put the transfer station and

         17  how it relates to access to the West Shore and the

         18  community of Travis.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Sure, I'll

         20  be glad to do that.

         21                 This is an old photograph, actually

         22  probably five years old, of the Fresh Kills

         23  Landfill, these areas that are so brown, so they

         24  closed for several years, they are now green.

         25                 This is section 67 of the landfill,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  just to orient you, this is Richmond Avenue. Here is

          3  the Staten Island Mall. There is Sanitation Garage

          4  2.

          5                 This is section 19 of the landfill.

          6  This was the last remaining active phase that closed

          7  now almost two weeks ago.

          8                 And these are the other two sections,

          9  28 and 34, of the landfill, they have been closed

         10  now for five years or so. And a current aerial

         11  photograph which showed this all quite green in

         12  fact.

         13                 The site of the proposed transfer

         14  station is right here where this dot is. It is off

         15  the West Service Road, as you pointed out, Mr.

         16  Chairman, which is a service road to the West Shore

         17  Expressway.

         18                 It is what has been called in the

         19  Department Victory Headquarters, because this is

         20  Victory Boulevard right here, and trucks would enter

         21  here and come into the landfill, and then proceed

         22  within the landfill.

         23                 Our proposal is to site the transfer

         24  station at this location. There is a compost

         25  facility here now and rock crushing behind. Most of
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          2  these trailers have been moved, and our plan is to

          3  construct a facility there so that Staten Island

          4  trucks come into this site, and tip, the waste would

          5  get containerized. We hope to bring the rail line,

          6  there actually is a rail line, you can barely see it

          7  here, and it comes along here. There's a bit of a

          8  spur that comes off to the VESY. This is the VESY

          9  paper plant. And they're in the process of working

         10  with EDC, and the Port Authority on rail issues, and

         11  bringing that rail line down around, over to the

         12  site, so that we can containerize the waste into

         13  cars that go back on the rail line, out over to New

         14  Jersey, down the chemical coastline.

         15                 So, this is the site of the proposed

         16  transfer station. And we expected to receive each

         17  day about 100 or 120 trucks from the entire Borough

         18  of Staten Island. Those trucks are divided among

         19  three garages. One is here, on the landfill

         20  property, that's Staten Island 3. The Staten Island

         21  2 garage is here at Richmond Avenue, that is the

         22  garage we will be focusing our attention on, and

         23  then Staten Island 1 garage is up further north.

         24                 The truck traffic, once garbage has

         25  been tipped at the transfer station will go
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          2  obviously in three different directions to return to

          3  the garages.

          4                 The trucks going to the Staten Island

          5  3 garage, will probably get back on the highway, go

          6  back to the landfill, get back on the West Shore

          7  Expressway, come down and get off right here at the

          8  garage. No impact. By the way, this is the town of

          9  Travis.

         10                 There is the nursery, the Molentov

         11  Nursery (phonetic), 26 I think is right there,

         12  Councilman, if I'm not mistaken, and Subs (phonetic)

         13  is right along across the street from the school.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: And the

         15  omnipresent Volunteer Fire Department.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: The

         17  omnipresent Volunteer Fire Department, exactly.

         18                 So, some number of trucks will come

         19  down to the Staten Island 3 garage. Trucks returning

         20  to the Staten Island 1 garage will simply go around,

         21  get back on the West Shore and travel north.

         22                 The trucks we're focused on that are

         23  of concern to the town of Travis are on a peak day

         24  25 Sanitation trucks, on an average day, 20 trucks.

         25  And the concern raised by the community was that
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          2  those trucks would not simply come around to exit

          3  the landfill and exit on Victory Boulevard to come

          4  back around. It is likely, and we wrote this in a

          5  letter, we've had a number of discussions with

          6  Council Member Oddo, with the community board and

          7  with community folks and with the Borough

          8  President's Office and within the Department and

          9  without the Department with any number of people.

         10                 One thing we're not sure of yet is

         11  the roadway configuration within the landfill after

         12  the landfill has moved along in its closure plans.

         13  There is a design competition from landfill to

         14  landscape which you may have read about, which is

         15  talking about the long-term future of the landfill.

         16  There is a roadway study underway, under the

         17  auspices of the Borough President's Office, to

         18  determine whether or not there is some way to take

         19  advantage of these roadways through the landfill to

         20  ease congestion of traffic on Staten Island.

         21                 So we have said, although we can't

         22  say with certainty, that it's possible that there

         23  will be an internal roadway scheme that would allow

         24  our trucks to leave this facility, make their way

         25  through the landfill, and come out internally right
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          2  by the Staten Island 2 garage.

          3                 We can't commit to that today,

          4  because we don't know for certain that that will

          5  work, we don't know what the plans are, we don't

          6  predict the future.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: If you had it

          8  now, how would they go to 2?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: If we had

         10  it now? They would go to 2 by taking the internal

         11  roadways of the landfill this way, over to section

         12  67, around section 67 and behind Staten Island --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: So, in effect the

         14  same thing, you're going to stay within the

         15  landfill?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's if

         17  we had that roadway available today.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: If they had,

         19  right.

         20                 What would you do today if you opened

         21  up? That's what I'm trying to get at?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, this

         23  is the other possibility that currently exists, and

         24  then, in fact, before the landfill closed and those

         25  trucks were coming to the landfill, because
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          2  obviously that's how they were arriving when Fresh

          3  Kills was open. We would direct them back onto the

          4  West Shore Expressway, not make a right turn at

          5  Victory, go north to South Avenue, over South

          6  Avenue, Travis Avenue, on the perimeter of Travis,

          7  over Travis Avenue, back down Richmond. As you can

          8  see, it's much less residential, much less congested

          9  thoroughfare than Victory Boulevard.

         10                 So, those are the two very likely

         11  scenarios, and as Council Member Oddo knows, we will

         12  be working very closely with his office, and with

         13  the offices of other elected officials on Staten

         14  Island as this plan takes shape.

         15                 We will need about 18 months to

         16  construct this facility, it probably will be

         17  operating shortly thereafter, maybe two years or so

         18  from now, and at that time we will have a much

         19  better idea of what the configuration looks like.

         20                 But in any event, it is extremely

         21  unlikely, and mindful of the particular concerns of

         22  Travis, and it's extremely likely that we'll be able

         23  to avoid sending those 20 trucks routinely around

         24  Victory Boulevard in the town of Travis.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Council Member

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  Oddo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just a couple of

          4  points, Mr. Chairman. I fully recognize that we're

          5  in the embryonic stages of figuring out what we're

          6  doing at that landfill in terms of roadways and the

          7  design competition.

          8                 Obviously, as you know better than

          9  anyone in the room, we have a certain window that we

         10  can call up an item and it's for the lack of a

         11  better phrase, it's a sort of a tool that we as

         12  Councilpeople have in our tool box, and I think I

         13  would be remiss, would have been remiss not to call

         14  this up.

         15                 So, I fully understand the

         16  Commissioner's comment that it's still very early in

         17  the process.

         18                 The second issue is, to some folks

         19  and my colleagues maybe in other boroughs, I think

         20  of Kathryn Freed and Canal Street, and 20 to 25

         21  trucks a day may not sound like a large number, but

         22  if you're familiar with the town of Travis and

         23  you're familiar with how narrow Victory Boulevard

         24  is, and the fact that you have a little red

         25  schoolhouse known as PS 26 on that block, and take
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          2  into consideration everything they've had to live

          3  with in terms of Fresh Kills for the last several

          4  decades, 20 to 25 trucks is a big deal to them.

          5                 With respect to the alternative,

          6  ideally I think all of us recognize that internal

          7  roadways would be the optimum solution, but the

          8  alternative suggested by Commissioner Hirst is

          9  acceptable because despite the fact that the trucks

         10  would have to go a longer distance, they wouldn't

         11  cut right through a residential community. So that's

         12  something that, if that's the alternative, that's

         13  the only alternative, I think it's better than

         14  rumbling through the town of Travis.

         15                 If I could just ask the Commissioner

         16  one question? Could you give us a rough estimate as

         17  to when we'll have a better idea of what we can and

         18  can't do in terms of the internal roadways? Is there

         19  a time -- I know it's tough to say, but is there two

         20  years, one year, three years?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: It is

         22  tough to say. I think in two years, which is when we

         23  think this facility would be about ready for us to

         24  use, we would have a better idea, at least perhaps

         25  we'll have an idea of what's not going to happen.
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          2                 We may not know with certainty all of

          3  the particulars, but we might know by then what the

          4  likely roadway scheme is, and what's not going to

          5  occur and then we can work from there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: As a department

          9  policy you normally have directives for how drivers

         10  that approach transfer stations, garages and the

         11  like, right? So, in the short term, if you don't

         12  have this directive, you're saying if you don't have

         13  this option of the network of new roads, the Fresh

         14  Kills Parkways or whatever you want to call it, you

         15  would then issue a directive to urge people urging

         16  them to go the West Shore South Avenue route; is

         17  that correct?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes. In

         19  the near, in the very near --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Assuming you're

         21  there and --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Lots of

         23  assumptions, right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: You're always

         25  there. There is no end to you --
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: In the

          3  very near term, of course no trucks from State

          4  Island districts are coming to the landfill.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Right.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Those are

          7  all being exported.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Once this

          9  facility is operating, however, yes, if a

         10  determination were made by the Administration,

         11  whichever Administration that is, in consultation

         12  with Council Member Oddo and whoever else is an

         13  elected official from Staten Island, and whoever is

         14  at the Department, probably Mr. Zapanski (phonetic),

         15  he's been there a very, very long time, we would,

         16  yes. Once we made a determination about the

         17  appropriate route for those trucks to take, an

         18  operations order would be issued by our First Deputy

         19  Commissioner, and so far as our department is

         20  concerned, it's a paramilitary organization, that

         21  would be that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         23                 Any other questions?

         24                 Okay, thank you.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: To recap the

          4  agenda, for those playing the home version, Land Use

          5  971, Brooklyn Community Board 8, Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission destination of the

          7  Studabaker building, in Council Member Annette

          8  Robinson's district.

          9                 Land Use 986, Manhattan Community

         10  Board 5, LPC designation of the United States Rubber

         11  Company in Council Member Moskowitz' district.

         12                 Land Use 987, Manhattan Community

         13  Board 5, LPC designation of the AT Demerest and

         14  Company, and Peerless Motor Car Company in Council

         15  Member Moskowitz' district.

         16                 Land Use 1047, Staten Island

         17  Community Board 2, application by the Department of

         18  Sanitation for a Solid Waste Transfer Station in

         19  Council Member Oddo's district.

         20                 The vote is now one in the

         21  affirmative, none in the negative. I will ask

         22  Committee Counsel Patricia Prothor to continue the

         23  roll call.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Sabini.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Carrion.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Abel.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          9  at four in the affirmative, none in the negative --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Can we hold the

         11  vote open? I believe Council Member Perkins is in

         12  the building somewhere. If the Sergeant-At-Arms

         13  could call downstairs for Council Member Perkins,

         14  because I think he's in the building, or the next

         15  room.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 Continue the roll call.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Continue the

         19  roll call.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: May I be

         21  excused to explain my vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Certainly. You

         23  can explain your absence while you're at it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In all

         25  seriousness, I vote aye on all. Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Okay, the vote

          4  stands at five in the affirmative, none in the

          5  negative, and no abstentions, and it is referred to

          6  the full Land Use Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thanks for all

          8  your cooperation. Enjoy the rest of this spring day.

          9  Meeting adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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